
Kanab Planning Commission Meeting

August 16, 2016

Kane County Commission Chambers

PRESENT:  Chairperson Joan Thacher, Chair Pro Tem Mike Downward, Commission Members: Marty Ott,

Melvin Watson, Stuart Allan, Arlon Chamberlain, City Council Liaison Brent Chamberlain, Business/Land 

Use Coordinator Mike Reynolds, Jeff Stott of Kanab City Legal Council, City Planner Bob Nicholson, and 

Secretary Katherine Ohlwiler.

NOT IN ATTENDANCE:  Commission Member Curtis Cutler.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Melvin Watson made a motion to approve the minutes from July 19, 2016 

with the amended changes.  Marty Ott 2nd the motion.  Motion passed.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:  Tim Clarke explained that as a property owner and resident in Kanab, he 

does have a rental and he would like to encourage the Planning Commission and the City Council to 

consider local businesses and be rather cautious of big developers coming in and saying they want 

exceptions to the rules.  Mr. Clarke doesn’t see any reason to roll over when we have ordinances to 

maintain our standards.

DISCUSSION ON PRESERVING THE DARK SKY OVER KANAB [RICH CSENGE AND PUBLIC]:  Rich Csenge 

presented his information about preserving the night sky.  Mr. Csenge presented the Commission with 

information about Ogden Valley, which is well underway to preserving their night sky.  Mr. Csenge and 

fellow concerned friends and neighbors are seeking the Commission’s support to accomplish three 

specific objectives:

1. To adopt a comprehensive dark sky lighting ordinance for Kanab.

2. To explore and inspire and to achieve an IDA – International Dark Sky Association City 

designation for Kanab.

3. To designate Jacob Hamblin – K Town Plaza as a Kanab City Dark Sky Park.

Mr. Csenge spoke as a concerned citizen, producer of Amazing Earthfest and as a member of the Kanab 

City Beautification Committee.  He asked to invite members of the community to join in crafting an 

ordinance that will improve our night sky visibility and capture its value to our tourism economy while 

enhancing safety, security and craftiness for our City.

Karen Doulet, Executive Director of Glen Canyon Natural History Association, spoke about changing 

ordinances in Page, Arizona about the night sky to develop a better plan for their City ordinances as new

hotels are being built.

Mr. Csenge then presented satellite images of the United States at night.  Donna Huntsman introduced 

Von Del Chamberlain who spoke about his life in astronomy and his strong beliefs in preserving the night

sky.  Mr. Csenge showed images of Kanab buildings with a variety of lighting issues.

Laural Beesley owns a vacation rental and explained that she has guests who come to stay in Kanab just 

to observe the night sky.



Victor Cooper explained that he sees people mesmerized by the night sky which translates to money for 

this town.  As it is a free resource.  Mr. Cooper suggested modifying the lighting which would benefit the

town and also make more money for Kanab.

Celeste Meyers expressed that she agrees the dark sky is important and that there are ten ways to 

accomplish this.  

Steve Hogseth encouraged the La Quinta people to consider such lighting in their new motel.

After further discussion with the Planning Commission on the night sky issue, Jeff Stott recommended 

directing the Beautification Committee to recommend an ordinance and change it and then present that

to the Planning Commission and hold a public hearing with all the information.  That way the 

Commission could make a decision.

DISCUSSION ON ACCESSORY BUILDINGS RENTAL USE, VACATION RENTAL, HOME RENTAL:  Mike 

Reynolds explained that there are a lot of people attempting to expand their property rental bases.  The 

way the ordinance is written, it allows people to put a guesthouse on their property which is available in 

all residential areas without restrictions.  These people end up renting these buildings out, creating 

other problems.  There is a requirement with the City that if you are a business making money you are 

required to have a business license yet that is just not being enforced.

City Manager Joe Decker expressed that there are 186 rentals on Air B&B and 37 licensed with the City.  

He went on to say that people are starting to rent out a few bedrooms in their homes as individual units 

and we need some ordinance to clarify that.  The City looks at the structure or the home as one unit not 

a room, but nowhere in the ordinance does it say that.

Adam Rogers explained that his neighbor has turned their garage into a Bed and Breakfast and he can 

hear the residents there all night long every night.  Mr. Rogers explained that because of this Bed and 

Breakfast, he is unable to sell his house.  Mr. Rogers continued saying he bought a house in a residential 

area on a dead-end street to live with his family with thirteen lots, two of which are now Bed and 

Breakfast places.  He comes home at night and finds a guy standing in his yard smoking because he has 

nice grass.  Mr. Rogers hates this situation with a passion.

Laural Beesley, owns a Bed and Breakfast and stated she had hundreds of records of people that have 

stayed in Kanab that have had such great experiences. Ms. Beesley went on to say that when someone 

gets a business license for this type of business there are many things they need to do and one of them 

is going around to the neighbors of the proposed business and getting their consensus.  Business owners

have to live up to their responsibilities and pay their TRT & Sales Tax, most of the people on Air B&B do 

not and that is irresponsible.  Ms. Beesley expressed that compliance is a big issue and these people not 

complying need to be responsible.

Steve Hogseth expressed that he has a rental next door to him and occasionally hears noise.  Mr. 

Hogseth believes having regulations and doing something to control the problem is a good step in 

hoping the problems will go away.

Sue Markham explained that there are housing setbacks, and just because people are changing their 

garages into apartments they should still follow the ordinances.



Celeste Meyeres expressed that she wasn’t sure we need more ordinances to address things that are 

already being addressed.

Adam Rogers believes the biggest issue is when a business has problems over and over then the City 

should pull their license and get them out of business.

Steve Hogseth wondered if you could call Air B&B and get information on these places yet the 

Commission informed him that they wouldn’t give out that information.

Sue Markham explained that without these businesses being licensed; we are losing a lot of tax money.

Larry Erdman wondered if there really was stated in the City ordinances that a guest house was 

considered an accessory building.  He explained that it is different in the County.

Tim Clarke wondered if one way to regulate the number of people in a house is sanitary requirements, 

he expressed that there must be a limit to how many people could use one bathroom.

Adam Rogers expressed that a lot of these older houses in town weren’t designed for these ordinances.

Jeff Stott explained that as far as enforcing the taxes, that would be something City Council would have 

to address and what they probably will do is have the people coming to apply for a business license 

show proof that they’ve paid their taxes before they can receive their license.

Joe Decker expressed that this issue isn’t just a Kanab City issue it is statewide.  Mr. Decker went on to 

say that after he made some calculations, he discovered Kanab City is probably not receiving about a 

hundred thousand dollars a year in taxes on this.  He explained that it needs to be a level playing field 

for everyone.

Brent Chamberlain expressed that he doesn’t think they can ignore the fact that somebody buys or 

builds a house in a residential area they don’t think they’re buying in a commercial area – and these 

quickly become commercial areas.  Mr. Chamberlain also explained that he, “would not be opposed, 

when they get to the discussion with City Council, the concept that when somebody fails to get a license 

or fails to pay their taxes, we assess their property and put a lien on the house which hopefully makes 

them go through the licensing process which gives us a whole lot more control this situation which 

would be a whole lot better.”

Laural Beesley wondered if there was a way to create a board to examine these issues and also to 

provide education about this situation and incentive for people to get into this business.

Celeste Meyers explained that when someone buys a property they aren’t buying the neighborhood 

they are buying their property and the more that could help with the model of someone being their own

boss the better.

Charlie Saba believes the City Council could pass an ordinance saying you must send in an application to 

register or you will be fined and you cannot advertise until you are licensed, that could happen right 

away.

Jeff Sott explained to the Commission how to proceed with the issues.

PUBLIC HEARING AND DISCUSSION FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM 

BUILDING HEIGHT OF 45 FEET FOR A PROJECTED LA QUINTA HOTEL ON PARCEL K-B-2-5 LOCATED NEAR



THE INTERSECTION OF 100 EAST (HWY 89A) AND 400 SOUTH:  Architect Kim Campbell explained the La 

Quinta building and what they are planning on doing.  Melvin Watson made a motion to go into Public 

Hearing.  Mike Downward 2nd the motion.  Motion passed.

Francis Batista believes what Kanab has is something that is a vanishing resource and the responsibility 

of all of the citizens is to help preserve that.  Mr. Batista thought the La Quinta building was ugly and 

that if the Commission gave permission for the building to be as high as they requested, the next 

building would be even bigger.  Mr. Batista went on to say that the ordinances were changed for 

previous hotels.  He believes having this hotel as the welcoming site for the town doesn’t make any 

sense because it doesn’t advance the prosperity of the whole community. 

Tim Clarke expressed his unhappiness for the La Quinta hotel being in Kanab.  Mr. Clarke explained that 

there are ordinances for a reason and if someone wants to build a building in Kanab, they need to do it 

to fit the ordinances.

Jo Anne Rando-Moon believes 45 feet is plenty for the building height and the Cottonwood Subdivision 

and Red Shadows would be lit up by the hotel if it was to be that height.

Jim Page explained that in 2014 many people in the room and the City Council and Planning Commission

spent many nights creating the General Plan, and approving it.  Mr. Page challenged the Commission 

member to hold fast, as this is only the second year since being approved, and to not cave in to big hotel

chains and come here wanting to do things their way.

Jeff Frey expressed that the Commission shouldn’t change ordinances because it suits a chain company’s

iconic building.  Mr. Frey went on to say that the building doesn’t fit here in Kanab and the Commission 

shouldn’t change the ordinances because someone wants to do what fits their buildings all over the 

country.

Caralee Woods explained that the height seems to be about the ability to see the sign and the iconic sun

logo on the building.  Ms. Woods believes the building is too large for small town Kanab, never going to 

get distance from the building.

Gregory Castle expressed his belief that this building is a significant detriment to the community.  Mr. 

Castle wondered what was the good reason for making the 45-foot height.  Mr. Castle explained that 

this hotel would take away the small town charm that Kanab has and that this is totally against basic 

charm of Kanab.

Steve Hogseth expressed that the Hampton Inn conditional use permit passed much to the chagrin of 

the people at the meeting, they felt there was a tone that they were not listened to during that meeting.

Mr. Hogseth went on to express his feeling that we need to stick with what we have.

Karen Doulet from Page, Arizona explained that she happened to be in the Page City Council Chambers 

when the La Quinta building was being passed and the voice of the community was startling, the citizens

couldn’t believe they approved the building and wondered why their Council approved that.  Ms. Doulet

expressed how precious the view shed is here in Kanab and how the new hotel is not needed.

Gregory Castle explained that the La Quinta in Springdale, Utah is a perfect building and wondered why 

they couldn’t have something like that here in Kanab.



Jim Walls expressed that Kanab has changed dramatically since he has been here in Kanab and the two 

new hotels are the biggest detrimental changes in town.  Mr. Walls explained that the building 

ordinance should be followed unless there is a good reason not to.

Rich Csenge expressed that what Kanab has is unusual and not found anywhere else.  Mr. Csenge 

believes that the building doesn’t proportionally fit in Kanab and that the Commission shouldn’t change 

the ordinance.

Roban Patel explained that he owns the two story La Quinta franchise in Springdale, Utah and there are 

certain things you can and can’t do with a franchise.

Robert Dykus explained that he moved here for the beauty of the area.  Mr. Dykus believes this cookie-

cutter style of buildings doesn’t belong here and it completely ignores the ordinances.

Stuart Willoughby stated that he personally believes the revenue that tourism brings in is Kanab’s bread 

and butter.  Mr. Willoughby went on to say that the scenery doesn’t produce money to pay the bills and 

take care of things instead of raising everyone’s taxes, there is opposition in all things.

Rosalie Coleman explained that she has been on the Commission previously for eighteen years and she 

knows how difficult it can be in making these decisions, her question to the La Quinta people was if they 

can revise what they built for Springdale, why can’t they revise what they want to build in Kanab.

Eric Palmer moved here for the scenery and doesn’t want to see a huge hotel coming into town.

Charlie Saba stated that unless the Commission can find a legitimate reason and not an emotional 

reason not to pass this Conditional Use Permit for the La Quinta Hotel, then they have to pass it.

Greg Reed wondered if the extra height is necessary and that it is not in harmony with the Master Plan, 

needs to follow guidelines that were displayed on the board.

Stuart Allan made a motion to go out of Public Hearing.  Marty Ott 2nd the motion.  Motion passed.

Melvin Watson made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit to exceed the 45-foot maximum 

building height to 48 feet, three extra feet for the parapets as may be allowed in 20-4 and 4-12 of the 

Kanab Land Use Ordinance for projected La Quinta Hotel on Parcel K-B-2-5 located near the intersection 

of 100E (Hwy 89A) and 400 S with the findings that:

1. That the proposed use is necessary or desirable and will contribute to the general well-being of 

the community.

2. That the use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing, or 

working in the vicinity, or injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity.

3. That the proposed use will comply with the regulations of this Ordinance.

4. That the proposed use is in harmony with the intent and purpose of the Kanab City Master Plan 

or that the plan shall have first been amended through public hearing.

Also, that this CUP sticks with the General Plan points 1 and 2, (1) promote our western heritage, culture

and values and (2) retain a friendly small-town feel and charm.  Stuart Allan 2nd the motion.  Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote.



STAFF REPORT:  None

COMMISSION MEMBER REPORT:  None

COUNCIL MEMBER LIAISON REPORT:  None

Stuart Allan adjourned.

_______________________________________ ____________________________

Chairperson Date


